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Constellation Lunar Lander Development Study

Solicitation NNJ08ZBT001

Amendment 003

Questions and Answers

23.  Question:  Section V, part b, sub-part 1 (Statement of Work), page 6:  Is the Statement of Work a separate and unique written section of the proposal (in addition to the page-limited sections for Study Area 1 and Study Area 2)?  Or is the Statement of Work simply a description of the entire “Part 1”, which includes SA1 and SA2?  If the SOW is intended to be a separate written section, is it page limited?  If the SOW is not intended to be a separate written section, are the words at the bottom of page 6 and beginning of page 7 intended to be applied to both SA1 and SA2?

Answer:  No, the Statement of Work (SOW) is not a separate and unique section of the proposal – it constitutes the response for Part 1.  The SOW encompasses Study Area 1 (10 pgs) and Study Area 2 (5 pgs) not exceeding 15 pages total.

24.  Question:  Section IX, part 8 (Contract Deliverables), page 9:  The 180-day period of performance (as stated on page 8) does not seem consistent with the due dates of the deliverables.  If the final report is due 180 days from contract start (i.e., at the end of the period of performance), how do the final oral presentation (up to 2 weeks after the report) or the awardees collaborative technical exchange (up to a month after the final report) fit within the period of performance?  Certainly, labor costs will be incurred for preparation and attendance—and travel expenses incurred—for both the oral presentation and the collaborative exchange; how will awardees be paid for contributions after the stated period of performance?  Instead, should the total period of performance be extended to 210 days; or, rather, should the final reports be due after 150 days?

Answer:  All references to a 180-day period of performance in the BAA have been changed to a 210-day period of performance.

25.  Question:  BAA Section V, Proposals, Subsections a. and b. do not indicate a page limitation for the Statement of Work.  Are we correct in assuming that the SOW is not page limited and is at the discretion of the offeror?

Answer:  See the answer to question 23 above. 

26.  Question:  Will participation in this study in any way limit the contractor’s ability to participate in future contracts for the design, development and production of future Lunar Landers (Organizational Conflict of Interest)?

Answer:  No, there will be no limitation on future contracting resulting from participation in this study activity.

27.  Question:  The announcement indicates that offerors may propose solutions for Study Area 1 or Study Areas 1 and 2, but not Study Area 2 exclusively.  However, are proposals for only Study Area 1a or Study Area 1b acceptable?

Answer:  Proposals addressing less than the entire design may be accepted at NASA’s discretion based on the funding available and number of satisfactory proposals covering the entire design.
28.  Question:  According to the Windchill website, password requests may take up to 3 weeks to be processed.  What is an offeror to do if a password is not provided in a timely manner to facilitate solicitation response?

Answer:  While access to the LDAC-1 data in Windchill will be necessary to perform the effort contemplated under Study Area 1 if selected for contract award, access to the data should not be necessary for the development of a proposal in response to the BAA.  No special consideration will be given to offerors that did not request access to the data in a timely manner.  
29.  Question:  What are the Omega Loops within the thermal system and how are they being used for condensation control?  What is the condensation used for?  Where can we find more information on this component and subsystem? (reference: p Thermal/3 of the Lunar Lander Design Review)

Answer:  The proposal should focus on the offerors approach to conducting the evaluation of the design, not the technical details of the design.  Therefore, we will not be addressing any specific details of the design prior to the award of contracts.   
30.  Question:  What is the compression system that is being used to create the 3,000 psi oxygen for EVA?  Where can we find more information on the component and subsystem?

Answer:  The proposal should focus on the offerors approach to conducting the evaluation of the design, not the technical details of the design.  Therefore, we will not be addressing any specific details of the design prior to the award of contracts.   
31.  Question:  To what extent is dust mitigation on the EVA suits considered part of the minimal design?  How high a priority is that solution for this BAA?

Answer:  Dust mitigation is not part of the minimum functionality design.  It is one of the areas that may be considered as part of improving the overall safety and reliability of the design.  Relative priority is at the offeror’s discretion.
32.  Question:  How many awards will be at the entire system level, subsystem level, component level?

Answer:  The number of awards will be at NASA’s discretion based on the funding available and number of advantageous proposals covering the entire design.  It is not NASA’s intent to divide the funding amongst the differing levels of the system.    
33.  Question:  What processes, if any, are considered for recovering the atmosphere during the airlock depressurization?

Answer:  The proposal should focus on the offerors approach to conducting the evaluation of the design, not the technical details of the design.  Therefore, we will not be addressing any specific details of the design prior to the award of contracts.   
34.  Question:  Can we use “Annotated Chart” as the format of Interim Study Report?

Answer:  The format of the Interim Study Report is at the discretion of the offerer to propose.
35.  Question:  Reference Page 7, Part 2 “Key Personnel” – Is the number three (3) a minimum or maximum?

Answer:  In this context, three (3) is a maximum.
36.  Question:  Reference Page 7, Part 3 “Price Proposal” – Can the Government provide a breakdown of the maximum firm-fixed price of $350,000 between Study Area 1 and Study Area 2?  If only Study Area 1 is proposed, may the offeror bid the full $350,000?

Answer:  The Government has no preconception and cannot provide a breakdown of the potential spread in price over Study Areas 1 and 2.  The offeror may bid the full $350,000 even if only Study Area 1 is proposed.
37.  Question:  The response to Question 5 in BAA Amendment 002 states that “non-U.S. companies are not eligible to participate in this opportunity.”  Does this apply only to the prime bidder, or does this apply also to subcontractors?

Answer:  The answer to Question 5 in BAA Amendment 002 is rescinded and revised, as follows, to be consistent with Paragraph 2. Guidelines for Foreign Participation under Section II. ELIGIBILITY INFORMATION.  That is, non-U.S. companies are not specifically precluded from participating, however, any non-U.S. company proposing must demonstrate their compliance/process for export control following the U.S. Government export control policy in order to be considered for award.  Any risk to the Government associated with participation in this opportunity by a non-U.S. company will be considered as part of our evaluation.  This requirement applies to participation by non-U.S. companies at all levels – primes and subcontractors.  
